
 
  CITY COUNCIL 
 JOHN F. COOK ANN MORGAN LILLY, DISTRICT 1 
 MAYOR SUSANNAH M. BYRD, DISTRICT 2 
  EMMA ACOSTA, DISTRICT 3 
  CARL ROBINSON, DISTRICT 4 
  RACHEL QUINTANA, DISTRICT 5 
 JOYCE WILSON EDDIE HOLGUIN JR., DISTRICT 6 
 CITY MANAGER STEVE ORTEGA, DISTRICT 7 
  BETO O’ROURKE, DISTRICT 8 

SPECIAL WORK SESSION MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
10TH FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM 

JANUARY 27, 2011, AT 9:00 A.M. 
 
The City Council met at the above place and date.  Meeting was called to order at 9:19 a.m.  Mayor John 
Cook present and presiding and the following Council Members answered roll call:  Ann Morgan Lilly, Susie 
Byrd, Carl Robinson, Rachel Quintana, Steve Ortega, and Beto O’Rourke.  Representatives Emma Acosta 
and Representative Eddie Holguin had requested to be excused.  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

AGENDA 
 
1. Discussion and action on Strategic Plan Update and any major outstanding projects that need to be 

brought to closure by May 2011. 
 

2. Discussion on update of expenditures specific to transit, pedestrian and bicycle access to date; monies 
programmed, and action on recommendations to target new funds to support these efforts. 

 
3. Discussion and action on reprogramming of Transportation Improvement Plan funds to address 

pedestrian, transit and other more urgent priorities. 
 

4. Discussion and action on alternative funding strategies for transit and transportation, including local 
funding options for State enabling legislation. 

 
5. Discussion and action on Capital Improvement Priorities for 2012 and 2013 including: 

 
A. Bus Rapid Transit Funding Plan (already approved by Council) 

 
B. Fire Department Capital Improvement Plan 

 
C. IT Capital Projections 

 
D. Short-term ongoing investments to current infrastructure 

 
6. Discussion on long-term Capital Improvement Plan needs including maintenance, new infrastructure 

and quality of life and discussion and direction on a process to develop a long-term formal CIP. 
 

7. Discussion and direction on law enforcement consolidation ideas and strategies. 
 

8. Council Topics and Policy Priorities 
 

A. Discussion and action on Downtown development.  [Representative Susie Byrd] 
 

B. Discussion and action in establishing a retirement village around Painted Dunes Golf Course.  
[Representative Carl Robinson] 



C. Discussion and action on exploring the feasibility of building a skate park at Veterans/Northeast 
Regional Park.  [Representative Carl Robinson] 

 
D. Discussion and action on the City’s proactive approach to transportation design.  

[Representative Susie Byrd] 
 
E. Discussion and action on the relocation of the City Consolidated Tax Office.   

[Representative Ann Lilly] 
 
F. Discussion and action on Hueco Mountain Estates and the City’s potential involvement in street 

maintenance and water and sewer issues.  [Representative Rachel Quintana] 
 

9. Discussion and action and closing comments that would pertain to the items on this agenda and the 
impact related to the strategic goals, priorities, capital projects, budget, and financial implications as 
noted in the agenda for the balance of 2011 through 2013. 

 
 
 
Mayor John Cook introduced the meeting topics and explained that the goal is to discuss priorities and how 
to accomplish them within the current financial constraints the City is facing.  
 
Joe Gonzalez, facilitator, gave guidance on how the discussion would be conducted. 
 
Joyce Wilson, City Manager, presented the topics on which she is seeking the guidance of Council: 

 Transportation expansion 
 Smart Code 
 Ports Operation Study. Should the management of the ports be outsourced? 
 Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) money. Redirect to other priorities? 
 Cambridge Systematics Trolley Study 
 Pedestrian access funding 
 First Transit Contract up for renewal in May 
 Formal action on Southern Relief Route to feed into environmental impact study. Overpass road 

leading into the City.  
 State legislative process: local funding option for transportation 
 Future of Union Depot intermodal terminal 
 Dover Kohl analysis of City’s land holding assets as a development catalyst 
 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) regional parks legislation 
 Comprehensive Plan 
 Northpark site and Saddleblanket property 
 311 Call Center 
 Police staffing and administrative structure study  
 911 District Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to fully convert regional operations 
 Finance agreements with waste haulers 
 El Paso Electric 
 Multifamily inspections from Fire Dept. in response to the increase in fires. Possible self reporting 

inspection program. 
 Shared services opportunities with County and other governmental entities 
 UTEP IPED customer service survey with some consolidation questions and questions about what 

services could or should be cut, if necessary. 
 Small Certificate of Obligation (CO) for next 12-18 months to fund some infrastructure to carry the 

City until a long term CIP plan is completed.  

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

2



 
Mayor Cook stated that the action of Council regarding the southern relief route should be in the form of a 
resolution by Council.  
 
Mayor Cook stated that Council needs to determine the best use of the historical Union Depot property. 
 
Rep. Ortega asked what has been done to date to prepare for Union Depot’s use as an international 
transportation hub? 
 
Ms. Wilson explained that her staff members have met with the key players, but she needs Council’s 
consensus that this is the best use of the facility. 
 
Rep. Ortega questioned Deputy City Manager Jane Shang regarding current bus presence at Union Depot 
and planned future presence. 
 
Ms. Shang explained that she is studying alternatives. 
 
Rep. Robinson asked if the alternatives included relocating the bus wash and everything. 
 
Ms. Wilson answered, “Yes.” She stated that an ordinance would be necessary to restrict loading and 
unloading at a centralized location for private buses. 
 
Rep. O’Rourke stated that one option should be not to enact an ordinance or to have a very certain place 
with a certain date for enactment so as not to inflate, prematurely, the expectations of the neighborhood 
which has been told to anticipate relocation many times before, without results.  
 
Rep. Ortega questioned Mayor Cook on: 

1. The status of the parking analysis for downtown streets and financial projections from that analysis. 
2. Plaza planning that the Foster Development Group will give to the City and how we can realize, 

fully, a renaissance for the San Jacinto Plaza area 
 
Ms. Wilson explained that a charrette will be done next month regarding Mills Street and San Jacinto and 
that Economic Development and Planning Director Kathy Dodson is working on a date with the Foster 
Group.  
 
Ms. Wilson met with the Downtown Management District (DMD) on downtown development and they must 
identify two projects that they will participate in with the City. The DMD has funded a marketing study on 
people’s perception of downtown and a census study.  
 
Mayor Cook said that the economy has triggered a new interest south of Paisano from property owners for 
a pedestrian mall where streets will be closed off, restricted to pedestrian traffic. Some owners have 
approached the Mayor about launching a pilot project.  
 
Joe Gonzalez asked for Council’s reactions to Ms. Wilson’s recommendations. Should she move forward 
with the recommendations to present to Council for action? 
 
Mayor Cook questioned Ms. Wilson on when the First Transit contract would come forward. He expressed 
his impression that since First Transit took over management of Sun Metro there have been increased 
performance measures. 
 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

3



Ms. Wilson stated that it has been a great success, creating an amazing opportunity to build on public 
transportation. 
 
Rep. Byrd stated she would like to include real, clear performance measures in the new contract.  
 
Rep. Byrd expressed concern that for transportation policy a conflict exists in mitigating traffic congestion 
and making us the least car dependent city in the Southwest region. We need a way to measure if and how 
we are becoming the least car dependent city. She would like to see transportation funding efforts focused 
on sidewalks and bike lanes instead of on more traffic signals. She would like a discussion on this. 
 
Mayor Cook stated that we need to look at both. He would not want to give up one for the other. These are 
long term solutions. 
 
Rep. Byrd commented that investments in mitigating traffic congestion for forty to fifty years is in conflict 
with the smart code—widening roads, adding capacity for vehicles is not motivating people to use other 
modes of transportation rather than cars. 
 
Joe Gonzalez asked the Council if Ms. Wilson’s list of priorities was reasonable. 
 
Ms. Wilson explained that as part of the comprehensive plan she could ask Dover Kohl to consider 
alternatives to cars as a method of mitigating traffic congestion. 
 
Rep. Byrd reiterated that if we want to be the least car dependent city in the Southwest we should go back 
to the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) and ask them to adopt that as a regional policy of theirs.  
 
Rep. Ann Lilly commented that it is dangerous to walk in this city. The traffic signalization does not make 
walking safe as the timing is too short for pedestrians to cross busy streets. 
 
Rep. Lilly stated that she is thrilled with adopting as a goal the cleaning up of downtown. She said 
downtown looks dumpy. We need to work on things that make the city look better, especially downtown. We 
need to remove fences in our parks and public places because fences send a message of, “Don’t come 
here.” 
 
Ms. Wilson said she would refer this to a Legislative Review Committee of Council to see how these two 
transportation goals could be blended effectively: the goal of becoming less car dependent and the goal of 
mitigating traffic congestion. 
 
Rep. Ortega observed that in the last five and a half years there has been significant positive change in the 
City with a long way, still, to go.  
 
He praised Ms. Wilson’s idea to have Dover Kohl help us to determine how best to use Union Depot.  
 
He urged the Council to take measures to remove the commercial bus wash in the center of the 
museum/cultural area. 
 
He opined that law enforcement consolidation was going to face several hurdles and that the City should let 
the Sheriff lead with his idea, either getting it done or not. He argued that the City should not, necessarily, 
take the lead. The Sheriff ran for office on the issue of consolidation so he should lead the effort. 
 
 
 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

4



Mayor Cook disagreed with Rep. Ortega. He would like the Police Chief to look at two or three areas where 
consolidation is feasible now.  He, the Mayor, does not want to look at the Sheriff’s idea of taking over the El 
Paso Police Department.  
 
Rep. Ortega said that yes, some consolidation is occurring, but a broad, complete meshing should be the 
Sheriff’s responsibility to advance since it is his idea. 
 
Rep. Ortega commented on El Paso Electric’s solar energy proposal and that after Deputy City Manager Bill 
Studer’s comments at Council on January 25, he is inclined to agree with Mr. Studer that natural gas may 
be the cost effective fuel to pursue.  
 
Joe Gonzalez once more asked if Ms. Wilson’s list is reasonable, and if so, should she bring back to 
Council recommendations and specific steps to be considered. 
 
Rep. Robinson stated that yes, it is a good list. He needs to see a specific action plan on each item to 
decide. 
 
Rep. Lilly stated that it is a great list. She would like to add some plan or program to market El Paso in other 
parts of the country as a safe place in reaction to the national perception of violence in Juarez that may be 
coloring our city negatively with all the media coverage reporting from El Paso about Juarez. 
 
Ms. Wilson explained that a collaborative is meeting next week: UTEP, City, County, REDCO, El Paso 
Times to create a more organized public relations “counter crisis” program directed to specific media 
outlets. Once the program is formulated she would direct Bill Blaziak at SMG to divert tourism marketing to 
it in a 12-18 month messaging format so that people are always hearing El Paso out there. There will be 
another face to the discussion about Juarez that shows its economic development within a country in crisis 
where real people are being hurt. 
 
Mayor Cook informed the Council that the previous week the US/Mexico Border Mayor’s Association was 
created and he may end up being the first president or chairperson. The purpose is to celebrate and 
publicize the US border itself as a safe place. The association stretches from San Diego to Brownsville. The 
first meeting will be September 9, 2011. 
 
Rep. Robinson added that El Paso’s image even at the Texas Municipal League is characterized by 
violence. He had to counter that image with facts such as 

1. El Paso is the first safest city of its size in the nation. 
2. El Paso is an All American City and the only All American City in Texas. 
3. El Paso has the only university in Texas with an NCAA championship. 
 

He stated that we need to get the message across to our local media that El Paso is a safe city – not just 
the national media. 
 
Rep. O’Rourke stated that the issue of Juarez is very important. He hopes we are successful in changing 
the perception of El Paso in the US, but he is not sure what we will gain.  He would like to attract to El Paso 
people from Mexico who are looking for a safe place to land, people who have high capital.  Dallas, 
Houston, San Antonio and other cities are marketing themselves to people in Mexico but we are not.  We 
need to attract capital wealth from Mexico. He would like to see this focus added to our economic 
development priorities. 
 
 
 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

5



 
Rep. O’Rourke continued on transportation.  He said the City Manager and First Transit, in response to 
Council direction, have dramatically improved the bus system.  But he does not want the audit findings to be 
a foregone conclusion. He believes there are still a lot of improvements to be made. He wants the audit to 
be comprehensive and balanced.  
 
Rep. Lilly said she thinks First Transit has done a good job, but it can be expanded. She cited that service 
stops at 10 pm. People may want to ride the bus downtown for dinner and that would help downtown 
redevelopment. 
 
Rep. Quintana stated that the City Manager’s list is reasonable. She asked what happened to the meetings 
between each Council member and Ft. Bliss officials. 
 
Ms. Wilson explained that the meeting was cancelled. 
 
Mayor Cook said some meetings had taken place, but the big meeting with the full Council was cancelled.  
 
Rep. Quintana explained that Ft. Bliss soldiers could help carry a positive message of El Paso to their 
relatives across the country. We need to communicate to Ft. Bliss soldiers and families what there is to do 
in the city. 
 
Mayor Cook requested to add to the City Manager’s list tasking Dover Kohl to look at street closure 
downtown for a pedestrian mall. 
 
Rep. Ortega asked the Mayor if property owners would entertain façade improvements. The Mayor replied, 
“Yes, they seem willing.” 
 
Rep. Ortega commented that there used to be a pattern of 40-50% Mexican patrons for downtown 
businesses and now it is 10 to 20%. Improved facades promote US customers. 
 
Mayor Cook added that the downtown property owners are also considering a downtown street festival.  
 
Joe Gonzalez told the Council that Ms. Wilson wanted to update them on Agenda Item 2: pedestrian and 
bicycle access and funding. 
 
Ms. Wilson explained this was an update item only and would be a segue into Item 3 and other items. 
Under Item 3 Transportation Improvement Plan funds, some monies are available to move somewhere else. 

 Country Club CO authorization: the recommendation is to reprogram it to take the federal money in 
the TIP.  

 Local money: Set aside 9 million for sidewalks with priority along the Bus Rapid Transit corridor, 
major arterials, and on-demand sidewalk gaps, and also to set aside up to $3 million in local money 
for downtown.  

 
Rep. O’Rourke stated that sidewalks alone do not accomplish the goal of becoming the least car dependent 
city in the Southwest, especially in the summer’s 105 degree heat. Pedestrians need street trees in targeted 
areas where people already walk. We need to promote safe pedestrian access even in areas where the 
residents themselves may not request that access. Those same residents employ household help: home 
health care workers, housekeepers, gardeners, who do need safe pedestrian access. He questioned Ms. 
Wilson on the Mesa corridor and asked if her idea was to dedicate most spending to the BRT corridors.  
 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

6



Ms. Wilson explained that there would be $2 million for the BRT corridor and $1 million for a sidewalk gap 
program citywide and for bike paths/lanes that are carefully and strategically planned and include 
streetscapes.  
 
Rep. Byrd asked where the $17 million in CBI for Transportation is. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated that Street Director Daryl Cole and Asst. Director Terry Quezada were looking into what 
could be reprogrammed.  
 
Rep. Byrd said she needed an explanation as to why this money is now available—such as the money now 
available from the Country Club CO. 
 
Ms. Wilson explained that the plan is to replace local money in those projects with federal money to free up 
the local money for other projects that do not qualify for federal money.  
 
Rep. Byrd questioned the Zaragoza signalization project and why it is a priority. She asked why the property 
owners in the area were not paying for it.  
 
Ms. Wilson said the Zaragoza work may be connected to the international bridge. 
 
Rep. Lilly brought up Robinson Street and the constant requests she gets to put bike lanes there. Traffic 
circles are being considered, so would the sidewalk money be available to put bike lanes on Robinson in 
conjunction with the construction of the traffic circles? 
 
Rep. Ortega questioned the money for sidewalk gaps and what the federal mandate is regarding that. He 
stated that BRT needs to be done the right way, with streetscaping. The core pedestrian areas downtown 
need to be streetscaped so there is a visible impact for the expenditure. What is the cost estimate? The 
BRT in the core area needs to be first class. 
 
Rep. Robinson stated that the Dyer bus route is a dangerous corridor where there is no signalization, no 
sidewalk by Angora Loop. We need to put more pressure on TXDOT to take more responsibility for their 
State streets, like Dyer. 
 
Ms. Wilson said that TxDOT is committed to assisting us, but she’d like to see if TXDOT would give us a 
funding source to do the work for them. The point is, they are state roads and the State are not taking care 
for them to our standard of care. We need legislative action from the State and we are working with our 
state lobbyists on this. 
 
Rep. Quintana expressed a concern that the lack of connectivity on bus routes discourages ridership, 
prolonging the trip well past the amount of time the same route takes a commuter in a car.  
 
Rep. Lilly asked if the sidewalk width in the applicable ordinance is variable. Some older areas of town have 
sidewalk gaps but they can not accommodate the required 5 feet in width. 
 
Ms. Wilson said we may need to encompass the street in those areas to allow for the 5 ft sidewalk to 
improve pedestrian access. 
 
 
Rep. Quintana questioned if we are putting money toward educating the public on pedestrian and bicycle 
safety. Ms. Wilson explained that yes, the City in using the red light camera revenue to fund the Arrive Alive 
program EPPD is conducting. 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

7



 
Rep. Robinson asked the Council to agree that once priorities are established that the Council sticks to 
them, collectively, even if individually, each Council member only received some or none of what he or she 
wanted. 
 
Rep. Byrd asked if property taxes could be accessed to property owners by street blocks in areas where 
sidewalks need repair. 
 
Ms. Wilson explained it would have to be voluntary. The Mayor interjected that if the sidewalk condition 
constitutes a safety hazard the property owner can be assessed. 
 
Mayor Cook complimented Joyce and her staff for finding ways to realign existing monies to fit Council’s 
goals. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated that staff is designing the plan for the Montwood corridor and would be adding it to the 
TIP plan to use federal funding.  
 
Agenda Item # 4: Alternative Funding Strategies for transit and transportation. 
 
Ms. Wilson explained that we need legislative authority for a $ 20 vehicle surcharge to all city registered 
motor vehicles annually. The funds would be restricted to the four bus rapid transit corridors (Alameda, 
Mesa, Dyer and Montana). She added that Houston had passed a Charter amendment for a local funding 
source from property tax that would allow more active investment in the transportation network.  
 
Rep. Robinson observed that already people pay a $10 vehicle registration surcharge that goes to the 
County. We need to look into the City getting a portion of that since the majority of County residents live 
within the City limits.  
 
Mayor Cook explained that the history of the $10 fee was to fund road and bridge projects within 
unincorporated areas. That is why it was passed.  
 
Rep. Byrd agrees with Rep. Robinson and would like to see it on the legislative agenda.  
 
Rep. Ortega commented that there were lots of hurdles to vault with this, but he’s fine with trying to get it 
through the legislature.  
 
Rep. O’Rourke stated he was in agreement. If it ultimately goes to the voters the City needs to do a better 
job of explaining the benefits people will derive from the new $20 City surcharge. 
 
Mayor Cook told the Council that the City does have some support for the local funding options, so he 
already spoke to the lobbyists to move forward in advancing them. 
 
Item 5: CIP Priorities. 
 
Ms. Wilson explained the spreadsheets (Powerpoint on file in City Clerk’s Office). She discussed  
Fire Station priorities and the regional training center. She mentioned that IT had undergone an amazing 
transformation. 
 
Rep. O’Rourke explained the need he sees for a dashboard application that increases access to City 
information for the public and the City representatives. He would like to see the ability to access City 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

8



information through I-Pad devices and smart phones because people are moving to these devices more 
and more.  
 
Rep. Robinson would like to see a side by side comparison of what we have saved the City by consolidating 
IT operations with the County. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated that we were an Oracle based operation but all of our programs are Microsoft based so 
when the consolidation occurred we migrated off Oracle and saved approx. $7 million. The greatest 
opportunity will be with the PeopleSoft upgrade. It will be transformational in accessing financial data. 
 
Rep. Robinson questioned security issues in protecting individual employees’ data.  
 
Deputy City Manager Bill Studer explained there are security restrictions in the systems that protect the 
data. 
 
Item # 6: Long Term CIP 
 
Joe Gonzalez explained that Ms. Wilson is looking for feedback on whether or not Council agrees with 
these priorities? 
 
Ms. Wilson added that the Council needs to keep in mind the tax burden when setting priorities. 
 
Rep. Byrd asked about signage and why it is on the CIP list. Ms. Wilson stated that we need to fund 
signage when and if it needs to be replaced. 
 
Rep. Ortega said that Street Director Daryl Cole had told him the federal signage requirements would not 
cost anymore.  
 
Rep. Byrd asked if the costs for traffic signals and flashers for school zones were proportioned to 
developers and school districts. 
 
City Engineer Alan Shubert explained it is a very difficult and lengthy process to apportion costs, taking up 
to 15 years to complete for a development, but they are working on it.  
 
Rep. Byrd commented that she would like the City to use more roundabouts and asked how we decide 
between a round about and a signal. Mr. Shubert explained that the cost can be a factor, especially if the 
City needs to acquire right of way for the roundabout.  
 
Ms. Wilson said that she could direct that no signals are added unless we first analyze if a round about 
would be more feasible. 
 
Rep. Byrd questioned the money for Parks. She suggested putting $4 million together for Parks instead of 
breaking out the money into the $2 million and $2 million different categories for Park ponds and playground 
equipment and lighting.  
 
Rep. Robinson returned to the issue of signage and asked what the federal mandates are regarding 
signage. Ms. Wilson explained that the City will change signs to conform to the federal standards only as we 
need to replace the signs for normal wear and tear. 
 
Rep. Robinson said our drivers need to be better educated on how to navigate roundabouts and who has 
the right of way. 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

9



Rep. Ortega questioned the Fire Training Academy and how much it will cost to upgrade the current facility. 
Asst. Fire Chief Mike Calderazzo replied it will be about $ 7 million. 
 
Rep. Ortega questioned the sequencing of activity downtown. The City’s San Jacinto improvements should 
occur in timing conjunction with the private development there to bring back San Jacinto to its former glory. 
El Paso is San Jacinto Plaza and the trolleys. 
 
Rep. Lilly said that her concern continues to be the water coming off the mountain that the Public Service 
Board (PSB) ignores, resulting in developers building ponds with rocks and cyclone fences. Can the PSB 
help with the Northwest area? 
 
Mr. Shubert explained the constraints the PSB is under and why that can not happen right now. There first 
has to be a plan in place.  
 
Rep Byrd said they could use stormwater and impact fees to assist. 
 
Rep. O’Rourke questioned whether or not the Fire Training Center should be included. He would like to see 
the City prioritize our dollars where there is significant public and private sector investment, such as with the 
Saddleblanket building. He would love to see $9 million in concentrated areas where the impact is visible 
and easily identifiable as an improvement rather that distributed around the City in smaller, less visible 
ways.  
 
Mayor Cook expressed his concerns about: 

1. Our recent power failure that derailed a number of our IT systems and caused a lot of overtime for 
IT staff. We need to address that.  

2. Infill projects and alley paving and the funding for alley paving. Is it included? Ms. Wilson replied 
that yes it is included for unpaved right of way. 

3. San Jacinto Plaza. Council had decided that certificates of obligation should be used for public 
safety issues and that everything else should go out to the voters. The Mayor asked if Council is 
considering a change in this policy. He expressed that personally he would prefer to see COs used 
for public safety. 

 
Chief Financial Officer Carmen Arrieta-Candelaria commented on the existing debt management policy set 
by Council.  
 
Rep. Ortega questioned how the O’Rourke Recreation Center was funded. Ms. Wilson said it was funded by 
CDBG funds. Mr. Shubert added that there were some CO funds used.  
 
Rep. Byrd said that CO monies had been used for parks before when developers gave the City a bunch of 
dirt. 
 
Mayor Cook said he would ask the PSB to do a presentation to Council on the stormwater/impact fees and 
what has been done with the funds. 
 
Rep. Lilly asked for the PSB to look at the whole Northwest side regarding stormwater management.  
 
Mr. Shubert said that the need is to take the whole masterplan and make it more detailed. Mr. Shubert 
advised that the City needs to develop a mechanism on how we can partner with private developers to 
manage the stormwater off the mountain.  
 
Rep. Ortega said he wants a policy finding from Council on debt management usage. 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

10



Deputy City Manager Studer explained that the magnitude of the change to a Park must be factored in to 
determine if the change can fit within the authorized CO usage.  
 
Ms. Wilson explained briefly how the CO money had been used for parks.  
 
Mayor Cook asked Ms. Arrieta-Candelaria to bring to the Council the debt management policy so the 
specific language could be read. 
 
Rep. Quintana stated that she wanted to wait for all the members of Council to be present to vote on the 
debt management policy as it is a major decision. 
 
The Mayor called a recess at 12:15 for lunch. The meeting reconvened at 12:55. 
 
Rep. Byrd removed her items 8A and 8D from discussion since they already had been covered. 
 
Rep. Robinson discussed his item 8 B regarding a retirement village around Painted Dunes golf course and 
his related desire to bring in affluent people to El Paso. 
 
Mayor Cook explained that the PSB has commissioned a study for 1,000 acres around the golf course and 
part of that study is for a retirement community, ideal for Smart Code development.  
 
Ms. Wilson commented that the Paso Del Notre Group also is working on this. 
 
Rep. Robinson discussed his item 8C, a skateboard park, and the need for the 92,000 people in the 
Veterans/NE area to have greater recreational opportunities. There is a great interest in skateboarding and 
the City needs to address that need safely. 
 
Rep. Quintana said that she has a similar need in her area for safe skateboarding areas and for public art 
that is interactive. She would love to see “skateboardable” art that combines art and recreation in an 
accessible form. This would take the skateboarders away from the library area they utilize now. She has 
discussed this idea with Arts and Culture Director Sean McGlynn. 
 
Rep. Robinson asked if that is a CDBG area.  
 
Deputy City Manager Deborah Hamlyn stated that it is not a CDBG area now, but that we have not received 
the latest census yet.  
 
Rep. Robinson said that a low end skate park is $250,000. 
 
Rep. Byrd suggested that the PSB work with skaters to design drainage areas so that kids can skate on 
them. 
 
Rep. Ortega suggested that the El Paso Tennis area could be used. EPISD owns it. Currently it is an 
unoccupied blight. 
 
Rep. Lilly discussed her item, 8E regarding relocation of the Consolidated Tax Office. She cited concerns 
about the Central Appraisal District (CAD) and that it costs $12 million to operate that building annually. If 
the Tax Office were co-located with the CAD maybe the IT systems could be merged with a savings for the 
tax payer. This also would give the CAD a nudge to enter into more consolidation. 
 
Mayor Cook suggested the City could enter into a lease agreement and an interlocal agreement. 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

11



Rep. O’Rourke stated that the CAD owns the building outright. If the CAD and the Tax Office could be co-
located and moved downtown it would do a lot to revitalize downtown. 
He stated that he and Rep. Lilly tried to convince the CAD to consolidate with the City for IT purposes but 
they were the only two votes for that. 
 
Rep. Lilly stated that the CAD pays $400,000 annually for a lawyer from Houston as their counsel. She has 
been told by the other CAD board members that it is not her job to question the CAD budget line item by 
line item. She reiterated that the City needs to put more pressure on them to consolidate. She questioned if 
staff members could be the City’s seat on the CAD Board. 
 
Deputy City Manager Studer explained that it is possible to out staff on the CAD Board but that there are 
pros and cons to the idea. Staff may have more expertise but elected officials have more credibility with 
their elected counterparts on the board.  
 
Deputy City Manager Almonte said that he has explained to the CAD that Rep. Lilly can question the budget 
line by line. The City could press to investigate the relocation of the office and the consolidation of the CAD 
with the Tax Office. 
 
Rep. Quintana brought up drainage and sewage issues at Hueco Mountain Estates. She explained her 
item, 8F, regarding that topic. She asked how the City can assist with this private subdivision. Is it possible 
to take over only the ponding area? She explained she discussed this with EPWU Director Ed Archuleta 
and she is not sure if they are willing or able to take over the ponding area. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated that the only way to do this is to take the infrastructure into the public system, but first the 
homeowners must bring it up to our standard, possibly with funding they derive from a Public Improvement 
District (PID). 
 
Mayor Cook reminded Council that the City had a similar situation with Kimberly Heights that cost millions of 
dollars and many years to bring up to code.  
 
Rep. Byrd said that in forming a PID it helps to have a resident champion to advance the idea and sell it 
among his or her neighbors.  
 
Mayor Cook said the problem in Hueco Estates is that there are many different classes of home there and 
not all of the residents share the same priorities regarding infrastructure. 
 
Rep. Lilly stated that it takes 51% of the homeowners to approve a PID.  
 
Joe Gonzalez reminded the Council of the need to stick to the schedule and move on to the remaining 
items.  
 
Ms. Wilson asked Ms. Arrieta-Candelaria to pass out to Council the debt management policy. She then 
moved on to Item 9, asking Council for direction. 
 
Rep. O’Rourke questioned page 9 of the debt service management policy—the 25 cents maximum. 
 
Ms. Wilson said she would have to bring forward an update to the debt analysis and plan. The 25 cents may 
need to be increased or may not need to be increased. 
 
Joe Gonzalez asked the Council what they want to achieve for the CIP. 
 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

12



Rep. Ortega replied he wants San Jacinto Plaza upgraded. 
 
Rep. Lilly agreed with Rep. Ortega. 
 
Ms. Wilson mentioned the Cielo Vista Library. 
 
Rep. Oretga said it did seem like a stretch to use COs for the Cielo Vista Library. 
 
Mayor Cook said the plan does allow for urgent and immediate projects and the “most cost effective means” 
provision in the plan so he was okay with using COs for the Cielo Vista Library. 
 
Rep. Byrd said that the Council has been fine with using COs for Parks so why not now? 
 
Deputy City Manager Hamlyn said that the City has been using COs for these projects in conjunction with 
park dedication fees.  
 
Ms. Wilson stated that the issue with San Jacinto Plaza is that downtown is Council’s priority. 
 
Deputy City Manager Bill Studer said that as long as COs are used for park projects that allow the park to 
remain substantially the same kind of park, the use of the COs is okay. You could not, for instance, build a 
recreation center on a park that did not have one before with CO funding. The key is changes to “existing 
facilities.” 
 
Ms. Arrieta-Candelaria stated that she believes that Council has been consistent with the policy. If 
Comptrollers is in doubt about the funding of a particular project, they come back to Council for direction. 
 
Rep. Ortega said he was comfortable Council is within its policy guidelines. He said that if the private sector 
does not come forward he wants City priority for San Jacinto. He wants the money for parks to be open-
ended enough so that if it needs to be used for San Jacinto if necessary. 
 
Rep. Robinson asked, “Is this our priority? What is the Foster group’s plan, specifically? Our plan may not 
be consistent with their plan.” 
 
Ms. Wilson said that Foster donated an architect and landscape expert to us to help us design the charrette. 
The Downtown Management District also may be willing to bond a portion of this. 
 
Rep. Robinson said that before any decision is made, we need to hear from the entire Council—including 
the two missing members of Council. 
 
Rep. Byrd asked Ms. Wilson to speak on the Zaragoza project. 
 
Ms. Wilson said that Zaragoza is the only major corridor that does not have interconnectivity of signals to 
control the flow of traffic. The City’s Dept of Transportation is requesting that the 2.8 million as a safety 
issue to get all the wiring in place. 
 
Rep. Lilly asked if a bridge over the railroad tracks was to be built. 
 
Rep. Byrd said that the BRT corridor has some of the same issues. 
 
Rep. Ortega wants Deputy City Manager Jane Shang to show the tie in between our strategic policy and 
any transportation projects that come forward. 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

13



City Engineer Alan Shubert showed a PowerPoint on the Long Term Capital Improvement Plan; Creating a 
Framework (on file in City Clerk’s Office). He sought guidance from Council and criteria to evaluate the CIP 
projects.  
 
Rep. Ortega asked what date would be the election for the CIP projects. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated she would not go to the voters until Fall 2012. 
 
Mr. Shubert said we can not actually call for projects until our CIP plan is further along. First we need to 
determine where we want to go. We should start with a blank sheet of paper. We’ve been reactive lately to 
deal with immediate and urgent needs such as Storm 2006, but we need a planned direction. 
 
Rep. Byrd said the issue should go to an LRC to determine what the criteria will be for CIP projects. 
 
Rep. Ortega agreed. 
 
Mayor Cook said he would like to see a hybrid approach where the existing CIP is examined and projects 
retained that are still important to the Council, projects thrown out that are no longer important and new 
projects inserted.  
 
Joe Gonzalez told the Council the next step for the meeting is to take the proposed framework to the 
Financial Management LRC or the Panning and Development LRC. Ms. Wilson suggested a joint LRC may 
be in order.  
 
Rep, Robinson stated that he does not want to see a separate CIP board. He prefers that it be incorporated 
as a subcommittee of the City Plan Commission. 
 
Joe Gonzalez instructed Council that the last issue to discuss was Law Enforcement Consolidation.  
 
Mayor Cook explained that he wants El Paso Police Department Chief Greg Allen to make a presentation 
for the long term goals of consolidation.  
 
Rep. Ortega asked if Council could invite Sheriff Richard Wiles to come also. 
 
Mayor Cook replied that would be fine, if their schedules coincided soon. He stressed that we need to be 
very careful about what we turn over to an elected official, no matter how well the City gets along with the 
current sheriff. He cited the recurrent problems with the jail processes as a cautionary example.  
 
Ms. Wilson said that EPPD has prepared a fairly thoughtful white paper on other cities who have 
consolidated into a metropolitan agency. The US Dept. of Justice has some planning money that could be 
used. She explained that there are some savings in consolidating the joint training academy and the 911 
integration.  
 
Ms. Wilson explained that to get real savings, there needs to be a single management structure. Either we 
contract with the County to run it or the County contracts with us to run it. We’re the larger agency with the 
greater number of calls for service, by far. The challenge would be that the Chief would have to report to the 
Sheriff and to the City, both. The issue is which entity will give up its resources to the other. She has asked 
the Sheriff’s Chief of Staff for a meeting. She would like to provide Council with both proposals.  
 
Rep. Byrd said she likes the idea of the City presenting a proposal that suits the City’s needs so that we are 
not just responding to the Sheriff’s proposal. 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

14



Mayor Cook asked if the Council would like to hold a joint City Council-Commission Court’s meeting. If so, 
the members of Council need to free their schedules on a Monday afternoon or on a Friday. The Mayor 
stated he would like the Police Chief and the Sheriff to sit down and see if they have some consensus on 
consolidation. 
 
Joe Gonzalez asked for final thoughts.  
 
Rep. Ortega said his final thoughts were that the Council is doing San Jacinto Plaza.  
 
Rep. Quintana thanked Mr. Gonzalez and said there was a lot to do in a small amount of time. 
 
Rep. Byrd said she would miss Rep. Quintana and Rep. O’Rourke and that she has enjoyed working with 
this Council. 
 
Rep. Robinson said that Council needs to keep the big picture in mind, the good of the whole City, in order 
to move forward. 
 
Rep. Lilly said that we have a great City and good ideas to move it forward.  
 
Rep. O’Rourke agrees with Rep. Robinson that we need to decide on what we want and then work together 
to accomplish it, as a team. 
 
Mayor Cook summarized today’s discussion as productive. He emphasized the need to stay focused within 
our limited financial resources. He echoed Rep. Byrd’s comments that this has been a great administration 
with whom to work and he also thanked the City Manager and her staff on working with nine masters, trying 
to please all through good performance. He thanked Mr. Gonzalez as the facilitator.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 2:14 through the loss of a quorum.  
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Richarda Duffy Momsen, City Clerk 

  SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING – JANUARY 27, 2011     
 

15


	  City Council
	 John F. Cook Ann Morgan Lilly, District 1
	 Mayor Susannah M. Byrd, District 2
	  Emma Acosta, District 3

	 Joyce Wilson Eddie Holguin Jr., District 6

